

Education provider	Anglia Ruskin University
Name of programme(s) FDSc in Hearing Aid Audiology, Distance learning	
Date submission	07 June 2021
received	
Case reference	CAS-16971-D3S6F6

Contents

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	. 2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Outcome from first review	
Section 5: Visitors' recommendation	

Executive Summary

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

The following is a report on the major change process undertaken by the HCPC to ensure that programmes detailed in this report meet our standards of education and training (referred to through this report as 'our standards'). The report details the process itself, the evidence considered, and recommendations made regarding programme approval.

Our standards

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed <u>on our website</u>.

How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

HCPC panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Elizabeth Ross	Hearing aid dispenser
Hugh Crawford	Hearing aid dispenser
Temilolu Odunaike	HCPC executive

Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	FdSc in Hearing Aid Audiology (Higher Apprenticeship
Mode of study	DL (Distance learning)
Profession	Hearing aid dispenser
First intake	01 September 2021
Maximum learner	Up to 92
cohort	
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC04874

The education provider is introducing a degree apprenticeship (DA) route to their existing approved FDSc in Hearing Aid Audiology programme. The DA programme would mirror the approved provision in its structure and content with the addition of a module to cover the additional components required for a degree apprenticeship.

Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards mapping	Yes

Section 4: Outcome from first review

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were not satisfied that there was sufficient evidence that our standards continued to be met at this time, and therefore require further evidence as noted below.

Further evidence required

In order to determine whether the standards continue to be met, the visitors require further evidence for the following standards for the reasons noted below.

We expect education providers to review the issues identified in this report, decide on any changes that they wish to make to programme(s), and then provide any further evidence to demonstrate how they meet the standards.

2.1 The admissions process must give both the applicant and the education provider the information they require to make an informed choice about whether to take up or make an offer of a place on a programme.

Reason: The visitors saw information that is made available to prospective applicants in the course overview. This included information around costs, academic entry requirement, End Point Assessment (EPA), amongst other areas. The visitors noted that the apprenticeship programme has a fully integrated EPA and that successful completion of the EPA will signify the completion of the apprenticeship. However, there was no information around what would happen should a learner fail the EPA. The visitors saw no information around resit opportunities or implications on the completion of the programme. The visitors were also unable to determine if a learner who fails the EPA would still be awarded the FdSc in Hearing Aid Audiology and if they did, whether the apprenticeship payments would need to be repaid. As a result, the visitors could not determine that applicants have the information they need to help them decide about taking an offer of a place on the programme. Therefore, the visitors require further

information about the EPA, which is provided to potential applicants, before they can determine whether this standard is met.

Suggested evidence: Further information about the EPA, which would be provided to potential applicants so they can make a fully informed decision about taking up a place on the programme.

- 3.9 There must be an adequate number of appropriately qualified and experienced staff in place to deliver an effective programme.
- 3.10 Subject areas must be delivered by educators with relevant specialist knowledge and expertise.

Reason: The visitors reviewed several documents including the Job families booklet and the Degree Apprenticeship handbook, among other documents, as evidence for this standard. The visitors saw strategies that the education provider is putting in place to ensure staff who would be teaching the degree apprenticeship learners are supported in their role. The visitors were also made aware of staffing changes including changing the current programme leader. However, it was unclear whether the programme leader would still have a role in the programme delivery or what the current staffing level is. As such, the visitors considered that the education provider needs to provide a list of the staff, who are currently in place to deliver the programme, and their roles, in order to determine whether they will be adequate to deliver the programme effectively.

Additionally, the visitors noted that there was a microsuction element being proposed on the degree apprenticeship programme. However, it was unclear whether this is being delivered externally or by Anglia Ruskin University and it was unclear who would be teaching this element of the programme. Therefore, the visitors request to know how the education provider will ensure that the individual(s) delivering this part of the programme have the necessary knowledge and expertise to do this effectively.

Suggested evidence:

- A list of staff currently in place to deliver the programme. This should also include their roles and the proportion of their time spent working on the programme.
- Evidence of how the education provider will ensure staff delivering the microsunction element of the programme have the necessary knowledge and expertise.
- 3.12 The resources to support learning in all settings must be effective and appropriate to the delivery of the programme, and must be accessible to all learners and educators.

Reason: The visitors were satisfied that the existing available physical resources would be sufficient for all learners on the programme as the overall learner numbers are not increasing. However, given the lack of clarity around the delivery of the microsuction element of the programme as noted above, the visitors were unable to determine how and when the microsuction equipment would be purchased. As such, the visitors require that the education provider clarifies who is responsible for the delivery of the microsuction element and how they will ensure the equipment required to deliver this aspect of the programme is available and accessible to both learners and educators.

Suggested evidence: Information that confirms who is responsible for the delivery of the microsunction element of the programme and how the education provider will ensure the necessary equipment for this element is made available to all learners and educators.

5.7 Practice educators must undertake regular training which is appropriate to their role, learners' needs and the delivery of the learning outcomes of the programme.

Reason: The mapping document stated that there are no changes to how the programme meets this standard. However, the visitors noted that practice educators would be required to teach and assess learners on the additional microsuction skill. The visitors noted there was no evidence provided to show how the education provider will ensure practice educators are appropriately prepared so they can support this new area of learning and assess learners effectively in it. Therefore, the visitors request further evidence that demonstrates this standard is met.

Suggested evidence: Evidence of the training available to practice educators to support them in the delivery of the learning outcomes of the microsuction element of the programme.

6.4 Assessment policies must clearly specify requirements for progression and achievement within the programme.

Reason: The visitors saw from their documentary review that learners on the DA programme would need to complete an End Point Assessment (EPA) and that these are zero rated modules. However, it was unclear how the EPA is tied into the programme. For instance, there was no clear information around reassessment or implications for the completion of the programme in situations where a learner fails the EPA. As the EPA are zero rated modules, it was unclear whether learners could still obtain the correct number of credits to be awarded the FdSc Hearing Aid Audiology if they failed the EPA.

The visitors were unable to determine that learners have clear understanding of what might prevent them from progressing, particularly as regards the EPA, or the available options should they fail or be at risk of not completing the programme. Therefore, the education provider must provide further information around the EPA so learners are clear about the requirements for progression and achievement within the programme.

Suggested evidence: Further information about requirements for progression and achievement, particularly in situations where a learner fails the EPA.

6.5 The assessment methods used must be appropriate to, and effective at, measuring the learning outcomes.

Reason: The visitors noted from their review of the documents submitted that the microsuction element of the programme would be assessed using verbal assessment and photographic evidence. The visitors were unable to determine how these methods of assessment would appropriately and effectively measure the learning outcomes attached to this skill. The visitors also noted that the education provider is making changes to the clinical logbook. However, as the logbook was not provided the visitors

saw no evidence of the supervision and assessment of the microsuction in practice and so they could not determine how any changes made would still ensure safety in the skill. As such, the visitors request that the education provider submit further evidence of how the assessment methods would appropriately and effectively measure the learning outcomes related to the microsuction element.

Suggested evidence: Additional information showing how the assessment methods chosen are in line with the microsuction element of the programme. Additional evidence to demonstrate how any changes to the clinical logbook would ensure safety within the microsuction skill.

Section 5: Visitors' recommendation

Considering the education provider's response to the request for further evidence set out in section 4, the visitors are satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that the standards continue to be met and recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.



Education provider	London Ambulance Service NHS Trust
Name of programme(s)	Paramedic Programme, Work based learning
Date submission	27 August 2021
received	
Case reference	CAS-17107-W6C1V2

Contents

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	. 2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Visitors' recommendation	

Executive Summary

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

The following is a report on the major change process undertaken by the HCPC to ensure that programmes detailed in this report meet our standards of education and training (referred to through this report as 'our standards'). The report details the process itself, the evidence considered, and recommendations made regarding programme approval.

Our standards

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed <u>on our website</u>.

How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

HCPC panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Kenneth Street	Paramedic
Angela Duxbury	Radiographer - Therapeutic
	radiographer
Rabie Sultan	HCPC executive

Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	Paramedic Programme
Mode of study	WBL (Work based learning)
Profession	Paramedic
First intake	01 October 2015
Maximum learner	Up to 18
cohort	
Intakes per year	3
Assessment reference	MC04939

The education provider intends to move teaching on this programme to new centres in East London and West London, from the existing arrangement of programme delivery at Fulham London. The education provider has also confirmed that all other aspects of the programme will remain the same.

Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards mapping	Yes

Section 4: Visitors' recommendation

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that our standards continue to be met, and therefore recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.



Education provider	Sheffield Hallam University
Name of programme(s)	MSc Occupational Therapy (Pre-registration), Full time
Date submission received	31 August 2021
Case reference	CAS-17108-S2J2Q1

Contents

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	.2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Visitors' recommendation	3

Executive Summary

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

The following is a report on the major change process undertaken by the HCPC to ensure that programmes detailed in this report meet our standards of education and training (referred to through this report as 'our standards'). The report details the process itself, the evidence considered, and recommendations made regarding programme approval.

Our standards

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed on our website.

How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

HCPC panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Jennifer Caldwell	Occupational therapist
Julie-Anne Lowe	Occupational therapist
John Archibald	HCPC executive

Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	MSc Occupational Therapy (Pre-registration)
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Occupational therapist
First intake	01 September 2006
Maximum learner cohort	Up to 20
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC04940

The education provider has informed us that they intend on increasing their learner numbers from 20 to 30 per cohort. They have appointed three new members of staff to the occupational therapy team, and are about to advertise for an additional three staff members who they plan to be in post for January 2022.

The education provider is now delivering online practice educator training three times a year jointly with the University of Derby and University of Lincoln.

Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards mapping	Yes

Section 4: Visitors' recommendation

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that our standards continue to be met, and therefore recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.



Education provider	Staffordshire University
Name of programme(s)	Independent/Supplementary Prescribing for Allied Health
	Professionals (Level 6), Part time
	Independent/Supplementary Prescribing for Allied Health
	Professionals (Level 7), Part time
Date submission received	03 September 2021
Case reference	CAS-17123-R0N1S7

Contents

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Visitors' recommendation	4

Executive Summary

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

The following is a report on the major change process undertaken by the HCPC to ensure that programmes detailed in this report meet our standards for prescribing (for education providers) (referred to through this report as 'our standards'). The report details the process itself, the evidence considered, and recommendations made regarding programme approval.

Our standards

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed on our website.

How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

HCPC panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Nicholas Haddington	Independent prescriber
Rosemary Furner	Independent prescriber
John Archibald	HCPC executive

Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	Independent/Supplementary Prescribing for Allied Health Professionals (Level 6)
Mode of study	PT (Part time)
Entitlement	Independent prescribing
	Supplementary Prescribing
First intake	01 February 2014
Maximum learner cohort	Up to 30
Intakes per year	3
Assessment reference	MC04952

Programme name	Independent/Supplementary Prescribing for Allied Health
	Professionals (Level 7)

Mode of study	PT (Part time)
Entitlement	Independent prescribing
	Supplementary Prescribing
First intake	01 February 2014
Maximum learner cohort	Up to 30
Intakes per year	3
Assessment reference	MC04953

We undertook this assessment to consider whether the programme continues to meet our standards, following changes reported to us via the major change process. The following is an overview of the changes from the information received via this process.

The education provider has informed us that they have made changes with their programme in line with our revised prescribing standards and the Nursing and Midwifery Council's (NMC) revised standards for prescribing programmes (2019).

We adopted revised standards for prescribing from September 2019. We are satisfied programmes will continue to meet most of our standards based on the revisions we and the NMC have made. Education providers should have made any changes needed to align their programmes to the HCPC revised standards by September 2019. This includes updating requirements to appoint suitable nonmedical prescriber supervisors to support the delivery of programmes.

The education provider has also informed us they have changed the monitoring process for ensuring the quality of practice-based learning. This was performed through a process of self-audit using a standardised form. All areas are now individually assessed using a process where all established partner organisations are quality assured in a rolling programme of audit. For any areas not routinely subject to scheduled audit, a member of the programme team will visit and perform an individual audit of the practice learning environment.

The University is moving to a 20 / 40 credit structure for all its modules across all programmes, so the programmes have changed from 30 credits to 40 credits.

The programme now comprises 24 days theory with a practice learning requirement of 78 hours. This is a reduction from 26 days theory and 90 hours of clinical practice. The module descriptors have been updated and the number of learning outcomes reconsidered.

The learning and teaching methods have changed with a focus on online learning delivery. A reflective case study now forms the major academic element of assessment. The clinical competency document is now called the practice assessment document.

Some of the assessments for the programme have changed. The previous academic component of assessment was a portfolio. This has been changed to a 2,500-word reflective case study and 1000-word assignment on supplementary prescribing and the use of Clinical Management Plans (with a completed CMP). Level seven learners no longer have to complete an additional presentation

Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards mapping	Yes

Section 4: Visitors' recommendation

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that our standards continue to be met, and therefore recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.



Education provider	Teesside University
Name of programme(s)	Doctorate in Counselling Psychology (DCounsPsy), Full
	time
Date submission received	28 April 2021
Case reference	CAS-16979-G4X6Z6

Contents

Section 1: Our regulatory approach	2
Section 2: Programme details	
Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment	
Section 4: Outcome from first review	
Section 5: Visitors' recommendation	
Section 6: Future considerations for the programme(s)	

Executive Summary

We are the Health and Care Professions Council (HCPC), a regulator set up to protect the public. We set standards for education and training, professional knowledge and skills, conduct, performance and ethics; keep a register of professionals who meet those standards; approve programmes which professionals must complete before they can register with us; and take action when professionals on our Register do not meet our standards.

The following is a report on the major change process undertaken by the HCPC to ensure that programmes detailed in this report meet our standards of education and training (referred to through this report as 'our standards'). The report details the process itself, the evidence considered, and recommendations made regarding programme approval.

Through undertaking this process, we have noted areas that may need to be considered as part of future HCPC assessment processes in section 6 of this report.

Our standards

We approve programmes that meet our education standards, which ensure individuals that complete the programmes meet proficiency standards. The proficiency standards set out what a registrant should know, understand and be able to do when they complete their education and training. The education standards are outcome focused, enabling education providers to deliver programmes in different ways, as long as individuals who complete the programme meet the relevant proficiency standards.

Programmes are normally <u>approved on an open-ended basis</u>, subject to satisfactory engagement with our monitoring processes. Programmes we have approved are listed <u>on our website</u>.

How we make our decisions

We make independent evidence based decisions about programme approval. For all assessments, we ensure that we have profession specific input in our decision making. In order to do this, we appoint <u>partner visitors</u> to undertake assessment of evidence presented through our processes. The visitors make recommendations to the Education and Training Committee (ETC).

The ETC make decisions about the approval and ongoing approval of programmes. In order to do this, they consider recommendations detailed in process report. The Committee meets in public on a regular basis and their decisions are available to view on our website.

HCPC panel

We always appoint at least one partner visitor from the profession (inclusive of modality and / or entitlement, where applicable) with which the assessment is concerned. We also ensure that visitors are supported in their assessment by a member of the HCPC executive team. Details of the HCPC panel for this assessment are as follows:

Richard Kwiatkowski	Practitioner psychologist - Counselling psychologist
Keren Cohen	Practitioner psychologist - Counselling psychologist
Niall Gooch	HCPC executive

Section 2: Programme details

Programme name	Doctorate in Counselling Psychology (DCounsPsy)
Mode of study	FT (Full time)
Profession	Practitioner psychologist
Modality	Counselling psychologist
First intake	01 January 2002
Maximum learner cohort	Up to 22
Intakes per year	1
Assessment reference	MC04878

The education provider informed us that they intended to restructure and redesign the modules on the programme, the practice-based learning and assessment approach.

Section 3: Requirements to commence assessment

In order for us to progress with approval and monitoring assessments, we require certain evidence and information from education providers. The following is a list of evidence that we asked for through this process, and whether that evidence was provided. Education providers are also given the opportunity to include any further supporting evidence as part of their submission. Without a sufficient level of evidence, we need to consider whether we can proceed with the assessment. In this case, we decided that we were able to undertake our assessment with the evidence provided.

Required documentation	Submitted
Major change notification form	Yes
Completed major change standards mapping	Yes

Section 4: Outcome from first review

In considering the evidence provided by the education provider as part of the initial submission, the visitors were not satisfied that there was sufficient evidence that our standards continued to be met at this time, and therefore require further evidence as noted below.

Further evidence required

In order to determine whether the standards continue to be met, the visitors require further evidence for the following standards for the reasons noted below.

We expect education providers to review the issues identified in this report, decide on any changes that they wish to make to programme(s), and then provide any further evidence to demonstrate how they meet the standards.

2.2 The selection and entry criteria must include appropriate academic and professional entry standards.

Reason: The education provider had noted in their mapping document that changes had been made to this standard. The visitors understood that "six months experience in a relevant role" would be required to show an applicants' suitability for the programme. However, it was not clear to the visitors how such experience would be assessed, and how decisions would be made about experience in an equitable and fair way. They were therefore unable to determine whether the standard was met, and require further evidence to show how the education provider will ensure that the decision-making about past experience is appropriate.

Suggested evidence: Documentation showing how staff involved in admissions are enabled and supported to make appropriate decisions about past experience.

3.13 There must be effective and accessible arrangements in place to support the wellbeing and learning needs of learners in all settings.

Reason: The visitors were aware from their review of the documentation that, while there were no major issues with the changes being made to the programme, it was nevertheless the case that there were some areas where the information and policies available to learners seemed unclear. This included the following:

- The visitors did not know how the learners would access support from the staff member / Course Leader Steven Ollis if his was a temporary or part time role;
- They were not sure where learners would access information about what are the exact criteria for passing/failing a placement.
- They were unclear about how learners would be enabled to fully understand the marking criteria of the portfolio (especially regarding criteria and proportion of competencies required to pass that element)
- They were also not sure what would happen in the case of a failing placement;
 and
- They could not tell from the documentation under what circumstances resits would be permitted, and how this would be communicated to learners.

Suggested evidence: Documentation clarifying the above, demonstrating that learners' wellbeing and learning needs would be met.

Section 5: Visitors' recommendation

Considering the education provider's response to the request for further evidence set out in section 4, the visitors are satisfied that there is sufficient evidence that the standards continue to be met and recommend that the programme(s) remain approved.

This report, including the recommendation of the visitors, will be considered at the 28 September 2021 meeting of the ETC. Following this meeting, this report should be read alongside the ETC's decision notice, which are available on our website.

Section 6: Future considerations for the programme(s)

We include this section to note areas that may need to be considered as part of future HCPC assessment processes. Education providers do not need to respond to these areas through this assessment, but should consider how to engage with the HCPC around these areas in the future, for example through the monitoring processes. When this programme is next assessed against our standards, visitors will have access to this report, and will consider this section when making their recommendation on continuing programme approval.

The visitors considered that SET 3.13 was met at threshold. However, they did consider that it was still not entirely clear how learners would access support specifically from the programme lead. It would not be appropriate or proportionate to proceed to the approval process on the basis of this lack of clarity but they did suggest that to avoid any risk of the standard not being met in the future the education provider should keep under review their mechanisms for ensuring that learners could be supported by the programme lead as necessary.